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Plenty Heritage Park  

2–6 Memorial Drive, Plenty (Lot 2 PS817427) 

Prepared by: Context Survey date: May & July 2021 

Place type: Community Designer: — 

Significance level: Significant Builder: — 

Extent of overlay: To title boundaries  
                               (Lot 2 PS817427) 

Major construction: Hall (1930–31, additions 
2010), CFA Fire Station (1970, additions 1979, 
1994), Church (1924, relocated to site 2018, 
additions 2020) 

 
Figure 1. Plenty Hall, built 1930–31. (Source: Context June 2021).  

 
Figure 2. Former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church, built 1924, relocated to this site 2018. (Source: Context 
June 2021) 
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HISTORICAL CONTEXT  

This place is associated with the following historic themes, taken from the Nillumbik Shire Thematic 
Environmental History (2016): 

1. SHAPING NILLUMBIK’S ENVIRONMENT  

1.2 Living with natural processes – fire and flood  

The Country Fire Authority (CFA) was established in Victoria in 1944 as a 
recommendation of the Royal Commission into the Black Friday bushfires of 
1939 The CFA became a central authority to manage the volunteer bush fire 
brigades that were the basis of firefighting in country Victoria. The CFA soon 
began to provide new equipment for brigades, including trucks, and 
corrugated iron sheds to house them. The Yarrambat bush fire brigade 
received an iron shed from the CFA in 1962. A CFA initiative to build more 
substantial fire stations for town brigades meant that new urban brigade 
stations were built at Diamond Creek and Kangaroo Ground from 1956. The 
use of the 1926 war memorial tower at Kangaroo Ground as a fire 
observation tower was mooted in around 1939 and it was first used for this 
purpose in 1948. The fire spotter’s cabin was added by 1974 (HO49 War 
Memorial Tower, Sandstone Building and Park).    

There were bushfires in the Shire of Nillumbik in 1962 and 1969. The 
catastrophic Black Saturday bushfires of 7 February 2009 that impacted on 
the Shire of Nillumbik were the worst bushfire disaster in Australia’s history. 
The Kilmore East fire on that day caused the greatest loss of life in the history 
of the Shire of Nillumbik.   

8 BUILDING COMMUNITY LIFE 

8.1 Maintaining spiritual life 

A church was often one of the first buildings erected in a settlement and 
therefore can demonstrate the beginnings of a township. Many miners who 
came to Victoria were of Protestant, nonconformist background and, as a 
result, many of the earliest churches in the former goldmining towns in the 
shire were Methodist. Other congregations followed soon after and built 
churches for their services. In some situations, due to the small and 
fluctuating population of a district, the church was constructed many years 
after a congregation was present. In the interim, other community buildings 
were used for services until the stability of a township was established. 

8.3  Establishing meeting places 

Prior to the building of local halls, people often made use of hotels as well as 
schools and churches for meetings and celebrations. Mechanics’ institutes, 
and later public and memorial halls, have been centres of community life in 
small towns and settlements of the Nillumbik area since the 1860s. They 
accommodated a very broad range of events and uses, many of which would 
have been accommodated in separate venues in a metropolitan context. 
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Halls were a venue for regular dances, with special attention lavished on the 
qualities of the dancing floor (Edwards 1979, p. 150). They were used for 
concerts and balls on special occasions and fundraisers of all kinds. They 
served for weddings and religious services and accommodated meetings for 
progress associations and all manner of sports clubs and societies, including 
scout groups. They were used for farewells and homecomings for soldiers 
during wartime, polling places on election days and as school rooms when 
the need arose. 

Mechanics’ institute and hall buildings in the Nillumbik area were typically 
simple utilitarian timber-framed buildings with little more adornment than a 
finial or two. Libraries were often housed in a skillion at the rear. These 
simple buildings were easy to move to new locations as the activity hub of a 
town changed. 

Public halls from the early twentieth century 

Diane Edwards found that by the early twentieth century the institutes were 
‘beginning to die out, or had become more places of amusement’. (Edwards 
1979, p. 130) Existing and renovated halls typically continued to carry the title 
of mechanics’ institute, but new ones were simply called halls. When a new 
hall incorporating the earlier Diamond Creek Mechanics’ Hall and Literary 
Institute was constructed in 1905, the old name was retained. The new hall 
was among the largest in the area, accommodating 400 people with a lending 
library of 1,000 books. Like many other important early Diamond Creek 
buildings, it was destroyed by fire in 1969. (Edwards 1979, pp. 53, 159) 

The Plenty Hall (HO248) opened in the midst of the Great Depression, in late 
1931 and was soon the venue for fortnightly dances, fundraising balls, tennis 
club meetings, the Sutherland Homes Dance and Empire Day celebrations.  

In the austerity period following World War II small communities had scant 
resources or materials for building a hall when they needed one. In 1948 the 
Yarrambat community solved the problem by moving a small redundant hall 
building from Langwarrin to create the Yarrambat Memorial Hall. 

Role of halls in bushfires 

Local halls have had an important connection to bushfires in the Nillumbik 
area. They accommodated meetings to set up bush fire brigades and raise 
funds for equipment, such as occurred at Kangaroo Ground Hall in 1914, at 
the Queenstown Mechanics’ Institute in 1916 and at the Diamond Creek 
Mechanics’ Institute in 1930.  During fires they provided emergency refuges 
and first aid centres and acted as coordination points for firefighting. Lady 
Brooks, wife of the Governor, visited the Red Cross relief centre and first aid 
centre at the Hurstbridge Hall during the 1962 fires. Locals could obtain relief 
supplies of clothing from the hall.  The Hurstbridge Hall was a section post 
during fire exercises in 1965.  

After fires, the halls acted as relief centres and accommodated charity events 
to raise funds for victims. A concert and ball were held at the Arthurs Creek 
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Mechanics’ Institute to raise funds for victims of the 1900 fires in the area.  
After the 2009 Black Saturday fires the St Andrews Lasting Memories Mosaic 
Seat was created by local women on a site next to the St Andrews Hall. It 
was finished in 2012. Finally, bushfire has removed a number of halls over 
the years, including the Diamond Creek Mechanics’ Hall and Literary Institute 
in 1969. 

LOCALITY HISTORY 

Plenty is a semi-rural district north of Greensborough, located 20 km northeast of Melbourne. The 
name Plenty is drawn from the nearby Plenty River, which had been proclaimed by Joseph Tice 
Gellibrand in 1835. Gellibrand chose the name to reflect the promising countryside of the area 
(Victorian Places 2021).  

Crown land sales of the area began in 1840, with blocks ranging from around 300 to 800 acres. 
Alexander McKillop was the first to purchase a block; Crown Portion 5 Parish of Morang, constituting 
820 acres. The Crown continued to auction the other blocks in 1853, Patrick Mornane obtaining 
Portion 3 Section 4 and L.C. Luscombe purchasing 308 acres, Portion 2 Section 4 (Westbrook 2016). 

The settlement of the land between Plenty River and the early Yan Yean Road, (now partly Heard 
Avenue and partly Yan Yean Road), was gradually subdivided until the early twentieth century. From 
this time the need for smallholdings increased substantially and land was divided more frequently as a 
result (Westbrook 2016). 

This initial, ad hoc settlement pattern differs from other settlements in the Nillumbik Shire and relates 
to selection and the take-up of occupation licences in and around the auriferous areas. ‘Glenaulin’ on 
Portion 2 Section 12 of the Parish of Yan Yean farther north, was subdivided into 108 two-acre lots 
and 72 one-acre lots, which were advertised in early 1854. The selling of the lots, however, was 
unsuccessful (Westbrook 2016). 

The alignment of the Greensborough Road (now Yan Yean Road) was altered from the original 
survey line with a series of curves to the west in 1869 (Argus, 23 June 1869:2). This new road formed 
a boundary for a number of subsequent subdivisions (Westbrook 2016).   

Those who owned large blocks of land towards the north in Yan Yean Parish attempted ambitious 
early subdivisions into several smallholder blocks. Portion 2 Section 4 of Yan Yean, to the north of 
Plenty, was subdivided by Henry and John Cooke, who advertised the blocks as, ‘Egglestone Estate’ 
c1885 (Westbrooke 2016).   

The 1870s marked a more traditional pattern of subdivision in the area, where larger blocks were 
divided into two or three lots. This pattern lasted until 1900, with only a few significant homesteads 
erected during this time. 

The early twentieth century marked the height of a subdivision trend in the area. This was likely 
influenced by the success of smallholders, particularly orchardists, in surrounding areas such as 
Arthurs Creek. Leslie Woodbourne Clarke, a grazier from the Doreen property ‘Linton Grange’, 
inspired this trend in 1905, having bought the northern lot of the northern half of the Crown Portion 5 
and subdivided it into 9 lots of 10 to 28 acres. The first plot was purchased in 1906, and 8 had been 
sold by 1914, the last selling in 1927 (CT: V3098 FF446). The southern edge of the subdivision 
included a private road, Clarkes Road, now Worns Lane. This success led to an increase in 
subdivision in the Plenty area where most smallholdings ranged from 10 to 30 acres. 
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Portion 5 west of Yan Yean Road, owned by Bank of Australia Ltd (presumably the rebadged Real 
Estate Bank Ltd which had purchased the land in 1888) was subdivided into 17 lots of approximately 
20 acres each in 1911. Browns Road provided a central dividing line for the subdivision. 14 had sold 
by 1916 (CT: V2020 F836). 

Arthur Grenbry Outhwaite of ‘Tallarook’ in Walsh St, South Yarra, purchased 496 acres, the section of 
Portion 3 Section 4 west of the Yan Yean Road, from John Butler’s executors in April 1912 (CT: 
V2326 F062). He subdivided his property into 40 lots immediately (CT: 3589 F730). The Lierse 
brothers (previously of Oatlands Road) bought the 38 acres at the western end of the subdivision in 
1925, which included a number of weekender lots (CT: V3589 F 730). When Outhwaite died in 1938, 
only two lots remained unsold (CT: V3589 F730). 

Plenty’s new landscape was celebrated in 1925 an article in the Advertiser, declaring it ‘the Toorak of 
the northern suburbs, where you get a panoramic view of the surrounding landscape for miles; a 
grand health resort, and only fifteen miles from the GPO.’ It is also notable that the area was 
described as having been ‘thrown open for selection’ in 1913, which is likely referring to the recent 
surge in subdivisions, that a school had been built, that ‘fine dwellings (were) built here and there’ and 
the Plenty Social Club and Plenty Progress Association had formed (Hurstbridge Advertiser, 31 July 
1925:4).  

Plenty’s town centre was established in the 1920s when the first group of facilities was established 
such as the school, Methodist church and store (Westbrook 2016). The Plenty Primary School 
(HO213) was built in 1924 at 17 Howell Road and remained open until 1993. The school buildings 
were demolished in 2013.  

In 1928–29 the Heidelberg Shire resumed 10 acres of land in Portion 2 Section 4 to create a ‘pleasure 
ground and place of public resort’. In May 1930 the Plenty Progress Association began to raise funds 
to build a hall on this new recreation reserve (the subject site) (Hurstbridge Advertiser, 9 May 1930:4). 
Tenders were called in May 1931 and the hall was opened in July 1931 (Hurstbridge Advertiser, 9 
May 1930:4; 23 May 1930:1). 

After World War II, additional community facilities were built. The Plenty reserve became a War 
Memorial Park with a playground and trees planted by schoolchildren on Arbour Day (Pearce and 
Plenty Historical Society 2009). The Plenty War Memorial Gates (HO249) were erected by the Plenty 
War Memorial Trust in 1951, and a fire station shed was erected on the corner of Howell and Yan 
Yean roads in the 1960s (Westbrook 2016). 

PLACE HISTORY 

The subject site is on part of Crown Portion 2, Section 4, in the Parish of Morang, a 308-acre lot which 
was purchased by LC Luscombe in 1853 from the Crown. In 1875 a 50-acre parcel of this land was 
purchased by Thomas Bennet, then sold again in 1888 to John Pritchard, butcher, and Thomas 
Bodycoat, farmer (CT: V1144 F732); CT: V2043 F454). Thomas Bodycoat became the sole proprietor 
of 35 acres of the original 50-acre parcel in 1889. When he died in 1905 the land passed to his widow 
Alice and Joseph, farmer, and Frederick Bodycoat, farmer (CT: V2166 F433010). It appears that up to 
this time the land was largely undeveloped and may have been used for farming. In 1922 the land 
was purchased by orchardists Frederick and Annie Deumer (CT: V4586 F140). In 1929 the Deumers 
sold the land to Edward Jacob Cane. Cane subdivided the land and sold the subject site to the 
President, Councillors and Ratepayers of the Shire of Heidelberg shortly after (CT: V2166 F536). 
Ownership of the site was transferred to the President and Ratepayers of the Shire of Diamond Valley 
in 1982 and then to the Nillumbik Shire Council in 1997 (CT: V2166 F536).  
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The subject site was recently subdivided to allow for the building of a new CFA building on its western 
half. Now known as the Plenty Heritage Park, 2–6 Memorial Drive, Plenty, the site incorporates the 
following individual elements: 
• The Plenty Hall (HO248) 
• Plenty Fire Station 
• Bell and Time Capsule 
• Former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church (HO250). 

The Plenty Hall 

The Plenty Hall (HO248), facing Memorial Drive, was constructed on the site, opening in 1931. The 
Plenty Progress Association had held a series of fundraisers during the 1920s, collecting £700 to 
build the hall. The Association asked Council to have the building inspector prepare plans for the hall 
in November 1930 (Plenty Historical Society Inc 2020, Hurstbridge Advertiser 21 November 1930:6). 
The opening of the hall in July 1931 was marked by a large dance inside the new building 
(Hurstbridge Advertiser 10 July 1931:2). The Plenty Hall Trustees were first rated for the hall in 1932–
33, with an annual value of £15 (Hermes record for ‘Plenty Hall, 103–107 Yan Yean Road, Plenty’). 

 

Figure 3. The Plenty Hall in 1945, circled in red. (Source: Landata) 

Within a few years the hall was already proving too small, and extensions have been undertaken 
intermittently since, reflecting its integral position in the local community. Electricity was introduced to 
the area throughout the late 1940s and early 1950s, and the hall was likely to have been electrified at 
this time. Additions include a kitchenette and hall ceiling, a concrete toilet block added to the 
northwest of the hall in the 1960s (demolished 2009), weatherboard clad wings to the north (two bays 
since demolished) and west sides (three bays), as well as an open porch at the side entry (now 
demolished).  

In 2010 the rear of the hall was extended, almost doubling its size. The extension included a new hall 
kitchen, storage areas and bathrooms. (Hermes record for ‘Plenty Hall, 103-107 Yan Yean Road, 
Plenty’; K Fitzmaurice, Plenty Historical Society Inc 2020, pers. comm, 6 July 2021; Dennis Ward 
architects 2008).  

There is a record of continued use of the hall by a variety of community organisations, including the 
Girl Guides, who have used the site almost continuously from the mid-1960s. The local social and 
cricket club (one of the earliest clubs in the area established in 1946) and the Plenty Progress 
Association are also associated with the site. The hall has hosted regular dances and concerts, and 
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its grounds were regularly used for large community picnics in the 1950s and 1960s. Some of the 
groups currently using the hall include a dancing group for children with disabilities, the Girl Guides 
and a local art group (K Fitzmaurice, Plenty Historical Society Inc, pers. comm, 6 July 2021). 

Plenty Fire Station  

The Plenty branch of the Country Fire Authority was formed c1961, at a time when many CFA 
branches were established in the area. (Mills & Westbrooke 2016:7). This date is indicated by the 
plaque commemorating the rededication of the cast iron bell on the corner of Yan Yean Road and 
Memorial Drive, which states that 2011 marked the fiftieth anniversary of the Plenty branch. Like other 
early CFA stations, the Plenty station was originally an iron shed (Figure 4). This building was located 
in what is now the car park at the corner of Howell and Yan Yean Roads (Plenty Historical Society Inc 
2012).  

 

Figure 4. 1972 aerial showing the Plenty hall outlined in red, the 1970 Plenty CFA building outlined in green, and 
the original tin shed used by the CFA outlined in blue. (Source: Landata).  

 

 
Figure 5. An image of the original Plenty Fire Station on the left (likely c1960s) and early volunteers on the right. 
(Source: Plenty Historical Society Inc 2012, Plenty Heritage Walk, www.plentyhistoricalsociety.com.au) 
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The fire station building appears to have been completed in three stages, with the southern portion of 
the building being constructed first. This section of the building was opened in 1970, as 
commemorated on the granite plaque located on the front of this portion of the building (Figure 6). 
The central section of the building appears to have been added in 1979 for a cost of $9,500. The 
northern section, sited forward of the rest of the building, was built in 1994 for a cost of $30,000 (Shire 
of Diamond Valley Building Card). The latter two stages of the building are built with bricks of slightly 
different colours. 

   

Figure 6. An image of the plaque on the front of the Plenty Fire Station, noting its opening date in 1970. (Source: 
Context, May 2021) 

In February 2009 the Plenty Brigade was involved in fighting the Black Saturday fires. These fires 
were one of the worst bushfires in Australian history and were responsible for the worst loss of life in 
the Nillumbik area.  

The building has been used for various other civic and community functions. These include functions 
connected to local sporting clubs, serving as a polling booth, and providing a meeting place for the 
Plenty Historical Society. 

In 2021 construction begun on the new Plenty Fire Station, to the north of the Plenty Hall. 

Bell and Time Capsule 

A time capsule was buried at the site near the corner of Yan Yean Road and Memorial Drive in 
c1984–85 to mark the 150th anniversary of Victoria. The capsule is set to be opened in 2034–35 
(Figure 8).  

In 2011 a cast iron bell (Figure 7) was rededicated at the site and placed above the time capsule. The 
rededication commemorated the 50th anniversary of the Plenty Branch of the Country Fire Authority. 
Discussions with the Plenty Historical Society indicate that the bell was originally located at Larundel 
Mental Asylum in Plenty Road, Bundoora. The Bell was relocated to the Upton’s property in Browns 
Lane, Plenty, in the 1940s and was rung in conjunction with a siren on the shop in Yan Yean Road to 
warn of fires. It is thought that the bell was moved to its current location in 1984–85 when the time 
capsule was buried. This coincided with the closure of the Plenty State School (HO213) in Howell 
Road. 
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Figure 7. Cast Iron Fire Bell outside the Plenty CFA 
Fire Station. (Source: Context May 2021)  

 

Figure 8. Time Capsule underneath the Fire Bell 
outside the Plenty CFA Fire Station. (Sorce: Contect 
May 2021) 

 

Former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church 

Originally built for Methodist worship, the Plenty Uniting Church was erected at 171 Yan Yean Road, 
Plenty (near the corner of River Avenue) in 1924 (Figure 9). The parcel of land, part of Crown Portion 
3 Section 4 in the Parish of Morang, County of Evelyn, was part of a larger property of sixteen acres 
owned by farmer Alfred Hill, who purchased it in 1919 (CT: V4189 F837625). He later subdivided the 
land, becoming one of nine joint proprietors of the existing land parcel, Lot 3, Subdivision No. 6039, in 
November 1925 (CT: V5065 F1012881). 

The church was built with funds raised by local Methodists, encouraged by the Victorian Methodist 
Church offer of £50 to communities who could raise £100 to put towards construction costs (History 
Victoria 2018). Aside from worship, the church hosted local events including weddings, harvest 
festivals, Sunday School and gatherings (Hurstbridge Advertiser, 28 March 1930:2, 17 May 1935:5 
and 31 May 1935:5). The building was extended on the west side in 1967. 

 

Figure 9. Former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church at its original location in Yan Yean Road. (Source: Yarra 
Plenty Regional Library) 
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In 1977 the church became part of the Uniting Church in Australia. The church was closed in 1985 
and was later used as an artist’s residence and then a gift shop (Hermes record for ‘Plenty Methodist, 
later Uniting Church’). The church building was included in the Heritage Overlay as HO250 in 2009, 
with the following statement of significance: 

Plenty Methodist, later Uniting Church is significant for its long association with religious community gatherings and 
activities in the Plenty farming area, since its construction in the 1920s, and one of a group of much valued civic 
structures in the immediate area. 

The building was subsequently acquired from the Uniting Church by the Major Roads Projects 
Authority. It was relocated to its present site, north of the Fire Station in the Plenty Heritage Park in 
Memorial Drive, Plenty, in September 2018 (Figure 10). The relocation was necessitated by the 
duplication of the adjacent section of Yan Yean Road and was undertaken following a review and 
heritage assessment by an independent panel (McCullough, T & Walters 2012).  

 

Figure 10. The former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church being relocated from its original site at 171 Yan 
Yean Road, Plenty to its current location on 12 September 2018. (Source: www.rbaarchitects.com.au accessed 
July 2021) 

As part of its relocation the church building has been restored. Skillion additions made to the west 
side of the church in 1967 were removed and the roof was reclad in corrugated galvanised iron, and 
four new cylindrical roof vents were installed. Changes to the building in 2020 have included the 
relocation of the entry doors from the south side to the north side of the porch, the addition of a 
disabled ramp along the northern side of the building, and the addition of a lower gabled roofed 
section at the rear of the original 1924 church.   

The building is available for community use and is the home of the Plenty Historical Society, which 
campaigned for its protection (Plenty Historical Society Inc 2020). 

DESCRIPTION 

The Plenty Hall, Plenty CFA Building and former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church are located 
within the Plenty Heritage Park at 2–6 Memorial Drive, Plenty. The site is bound by Howell Road to 
the north, Yan Yean Road to the east and Memorial Drive to the south, and extends through to 
Butlers Road at the corner of Howell Road. The site falls north to south and is largely gravelled, 
providing car and pedestrian access to the site from both Memorial Drive and Yan Yean Road. The 
site is characterised by unstructured plantings of Australian native trees which provide an informal 
bush setting for the buildings. The site is largely unfenced except for a low timber post-and-rail fence 

http://www.rbaarchitects.com.au/
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enclosing a small lawned garden area at the corner of Yan Yean Road and Memorial Drive, and a 
high cyclone-wire fence that encloses a utility area at the back of the CFA building.  

 

Figure 11. Map of the now subdivided site at 2–10 Memorial Drive, Plenty. The Plenty Fire Station is highlighted 
in red; the location of the bell and time capsule is highlighted in yellow. The Plenty Hall is highlighted in blue and 
the former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church in green. The area to the west of the Plenty Hall is the location 
for the new CFA building. At the time of a site inspection on 15 May 2021 this portion of the site had been cleared 
of all trees and site works for the new building had commenced. (Source: Nearmap 6 March 2021, with Context 
overlays) 

 

The Plenty Hall (c1931) 

The Plenty Hall is a single-storey bullnose weatherboard building located along Memorial Drive 
midway between Yan Yean Road and Butlers Road. The building is rectangular in plan and has a 
gable Colorbond corrugated iron roof with several skylights penetrating the rear section of the roof. 

The building was constructed in two main stages. The taller front section of the building facing 
Memorial Drive is the original Hall building constructed in 1930. The lower rear section is an addition 
built in 2010. The front section of the building is distinguished by its unusual chamfered eaves lined 
with open timber slats. The later addition has standard boxed eaves. 
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Figure 12. Eastern elevation of the Pleny Hall showing the taller original building built in 1930–31 and the lower 
extension added in 2010. (Source: Context June 2021). 

Skillion-roofed additions that sit below the gutter line run along three quarters of the western face of 
the hall, and a verandah runs along the eastern façade to the northern half of the building. 

 

Figure 13. South west corner of the Plenty Hall showing the skillion-roofed additions along the building’s western 
side. Note the chamfered open slatted eaves detail of the original Hall building. (Source: Context June 2021) 

The principal elevation facing Memorial Drive is symmetrically arranged with vertical timber double-
hung sash windows either side of a pair of flush panel doors. Access to the building is via a concrete 
ramp with a painted tubular steel balustrade. A large sign attached to the wall above the doors reads 
‘PLENTY HALL’.  
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Figure 14. Principal elevation of the Plenty Hall facing Memorial Drive, Plenty. (Source: Context May 2021). 

Along the eastern elevation there are four equally spaced vertical, timber-framed sash windows and a 
single timber-panelled door on the front section of the building. There are a pair of flush panel doors 
under the verandah of the rear section. The western elevation is utilitarian in nature with high 
horizonal windows that provide light and ventilation to the service area of the building. 

The Plenty CFA Fire Station (1970) 

The Plenty CFA Fire Station is located in the southeast of the site, near the corner of Yan Yean Road 
and Memorial Drive.  

The building is a utilitarian single-storey rectilinear building constructed in beige brick. Its function as a 
fire station has dictated its overall form. It has a simple skillion roof clad in corrugated iron which falls 
east to west.  

The eastern elevation, facing Yan Yean Road, is the building’s principal façade. This elevation 
contains the main pedestrian entry, as well as four large entries for fire trucks. The building projects 
forward at its northern end, housing a tall double-width garage door with inset glazed upper panes. 
Three further single-width garage doors are centrally located on this elevation; two of these are solid, 
and one is inset with glazed upper panes. Between the two solid doors a small granite plaque is set 
into the wall, noting the official opening in 1970. To the south of this elevation, a glazed door is placed 
between two natural aluminium framed windows. ‘Plenty Fire Brigade’ is visible in white lettering 
above the two solid garage doors.   
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Figure 15. Principal elevation of the Plent CFA Fire Station facing Yan Yean Road. (Source: Context May 2021) 

The northern elevation has a centrally set window. The southern elevation has had a verandah 
added. The western elevation is predominantly face brick, with various small windows. All windows 
are framed in natural aluminium and are functional in purpose, providing light and ventilation to the 
service areas of the building.   

 

Figure 16. North elevation of the Plenty CFA Fire 
Station. (Source: Context May 2021) 
 

 

Figure 17. Southeast corner of the Plenty CFA Fire 
Station showing the addition of a pergola structure. 
(Source: Context May 2021). 

Bell and Time Capsule 

A small area of garden located on the corner of Memorial Drive and Yan Yean Road is set behind a 
low post-and-rail timber fence. A cast iron fire bell is located within this garden. The bell is painted red 
and set on a simple frame of dark stained timber. A small metal plaque on this frame commemorates 
the rededication of the bell in 2011 to mark the Plenty CFA’s 50th anniversary. Around the top of the 
bell are cast letters reading ‘Vickers Sons & co Limited Sheffield 1875 Patent Cast Steel 6316’. A time 
capsule was buried under the bell in c1984–85 to mark the 150th anniversary of Victoria.  

Former Plenty Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church (1924, relocated to this site 2018) 

The former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church is located towards the northern end of the site 
behind the Plenty Hall. The building faces Yan Yean Road and is set back a distance from the road 
allowing for a gravel carpark in front. The relocated church is positioned on the highest point of the 
land and is elevated on concrete stumps (concealed by open timber base boards). It is a simple 
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rectangular weatherboard building with a steeply pitched gable roof clad in galvanised corrugated 
iron, with exposed rafter ends and four cylindrical roof vents, pointed window openings and projecting 
front vestibule. These features are characteristic of the interwar Carpenter Gothic style.  

The building has been constructed in two sections: the front taller section is the original church bult in 
1924, and the rear section was added in 2020. The original section of the building features a two-
pointed arched opening on its northern and southern elevations. These openings are fitted with timber 
double-hung sash windows. The bottom sashes are divided into four and are glazed with opaque 
ripple glass. The top sections are divided into six clear glazed panes centred on a stylised Y-shaped 
tracery element. Along the southern elevation towards the rear of the original church building is a 
single vertical boarded door that is elevated above the ground. A disabled ramp and timber steps 
have been added to the northern side of the building, providing access to a pair of vertically boarded 
doors on the northern side of the front projecting vestibule. The rear, lower addition to the church has 
been built to mimic the detailing of the original building with a steeply pitched gable roof, exposed 
rafter ends and a timber slatted air vent on the gable end.  

 

Figure 18. Relocated former Plenty Methodist (later 
Uniting) Church showing northern elevation and entry 
vestibule. The lower rear section of the building was 
added in 2020. Source: Context June 2021). 

 

Figure 19. Relocated former Plenty Methodist (later 
Uniting) Church showing southern elevation. (Source: 
Context June 2021). 

INTEGRITY 

The Plenty Hall at 2–6 Memorial Drive, Plenty is largely intact, although some changes are visible to 
original or early fabric. The building’s original gable roofed form as built in 1930 remains clearly 
legible. The building retains its original pattern of openings and window joinery. Changes to the 
building include the addition of skillion-roofed sections to the western elevation and a large gabled 
roof addition at its northern end in 2010. These additions are clear identifiable, leaving the original hall 
building clearly legible. 

The Plenty Fire Station at 2–6 Memorial Drive, Plenty is largely intact, although some changes are 
visible to original or early fabric. The building’s original built form as constructed in 1970 is still legible 
and retains its skillion-roofed form and pattern of window and door openings with their original fittings. 
Changes to the building include two additions to its northern end (1979 and 1994) that doubled the 
size of the building. These additions have been designed to seamlessly merge with the earlier section 
of the building, although a different colour of brick was used, making the early section of the building 
clearly distinguishable. 
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The former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church at 2–6 Memorial Drive is largely intact, although 
some changes are visible to original or early fabric. The building’s original 1924 gable-roofed form 
with projecting gable-roofed entry vestibule remains clearly legible. The building retains its original 
pattern of pointed arch window openings and joinery. Changes include the moving of the entry doors 
from the southern side to the northern side of the entry vestibule, construction of a ramp and steps 
along the northern side of the building, recladding of the roof with galvanised corrugated iron, and a 
gable-roofed addition to its western end in 2020. These additions are clear identifiable, leaving the 
original church building clearly legible. While the building has been relocated to this site in 2018, this 
site is only 430 metres from its original location and retains the original bush setting of the building.  

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS 
Church buildings 

Churches played an important role in the lives of early settlers to the Shire, becoming the centre of 
the spiritual and social lives of communities. Many miners who came to Victoria were of Protestant, 
nonconformist background, so many of the earliest churches in the former goldmining towns in the 
shire were Methodist. Eltham and Diamond Creek are noted as being one of the earliest areas in 
Victoria to establish primitive Methodist churches, conducting services out of a home in Eltham in 
1850 (Mills & Westbrooke 2017). The first Wesleyan Church was built on the corner of Susan and 
Bridge streets, Eltham in 1860. The Diamond Creek community built a small chapel in 1861, and a 
Nillumbik church was built in 1871. Other congregations followed soon after. In some situations, due 
to the small and fluctuating population of a district, the church was constructed many years after a 
congregation was present. In the interim, other community buildings were used for services until a 
stable township was established (Mills & Westbrooke 2017).  

There are only eight other churches represented on the Shire of Nillumbik’s Heritage Overlay. Of 
these, four date from the nineteenth century (St Margaret’s Anglican Church, Eltham c1860-1 
(HO154); St Andrew’s Anglican Church, St Andrews c1868 (HO21); Presbyterian Church, Kangaroo 
Ground (HO46); Uniting Church, originally Methodist Church, Eltham 1880 (HO118)). Two date from 
the early twentieth century (St Matthews Church, Hall, War Memorial and Plantings, Panton Hill 
c1900-1920s (HO96); Hurstbridge Uniting Church and Hall originally Methodist Church, Hurstbridge 
(1925 HO60)). One dates from the 1950s (St Michael’s Anglican Church, Yarrambat 1954 (HO219)) 
and one dates from the 1970s (St Peter’s Anglican Church, Hurstbridge c1970s (HO62)).  

 

 

The follow text is an abstract from the 
Statement of Significance for HO21: 

The church is historically significant because it 
may have given its name 'St Andrews' to the 
town (another suggestion is that the name came 
from the local hotel - HO19), it is also historically 
significant as one of only four buildings that 
remain from the Caledonian goldfields era of 
Queenstown (now St Andrews) and one of only 
a handful of buildings that survived the 1960s 
bushfires (Criteria A & B). The church is 
historically, socially and spiritually significant 
because it has played an important part in 
community life for more than 120 years; a 
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proposal to move the church in 1984 met with 
strenuous opposition (Criterion G). 

 

 
Figure 21. Presbyterian Church 265 Eltham–Yarra 
Glen Road, Kangaroo Ground c1878 (HO46 Shire of 
Nillumbik) 

 

The follow text is an abstract from the 
Statement of Significance for HO46: 

The church is historically, socially and spiritually 
significant because it has served the local 
community for over 110 years and is associated 
with several prominent local families, including 
the Donaldsons, the Bells and the Camerons 
(Criteria G & H). The church is historically and 
aesthetically significant as one of a group of 
three well preserved public buildings in the 
Kangaroo Ground hamlet (see also HO47 and 
HO48) and as a major heritage component of 
Kangaroo Ground which was one of the earliest 
settled areas of the Shire and which has the 
character of an English village rather than an 
Australian settlement (Criteria A & E). The 
church is architecturally significant as one of 
only four 19th century brick churches in the 
Shire. Its simple design reflects its country 
location and Presbyterian congregation (Criteria 
H, E & B). 

 

 

The follow text is an abstract from the 
Statement of Significance for HO118: 

The church is architecturally significant as a 
finely detailed example of a brick 19th century 
rural community church, one of only four in the 
Shire (Criteria E & B). The church is historically 
significant as an important link with the time 
when Eltham was a small, insular country 
settlement. (Criterion A). The church is 
historically, spiritually and socially significant 
because it has played, and continues to play, an 
important part in the spiritual and social life of 
the community (Criterion G). 
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Figure 23. St Matthew’s Church 575 Kangaroo 
Ground-St Andrews Road, Panton Hill c1900–1920s 
(HO96 Shire of Nillumbik) 
 

The follow text is an abstract from the 
Statement of Significance for HO96:  

The church is historically, socially and spiritually 
significant because it has been a focus for the 
community since its construction in the early 
20th century (Criterion G). The church is 
aesthetically significant as a good example of a 
standard design early 20th century church and 
an important streetscape element (Criterion E). 
The grouping of church, memorial cross, school, 
store and post office, that occurs within the 
centre of Panton Hill, is typical of the pattern of 
development in country towns throughout 
Victoria (Criteria A & E). 

 

 
Figure 24. Hurstbridge Uniting Church and hall 
(originally Methodist) 998 Heidelberg–Kinglake Road, 
Hurstbridge c1925 (HO60 Shire of Nillumbik). 
 

The follow text is an abstract from the 
Statement of Significance for HO60: 

The church is historically significant because its 
construction illustrates the growth of Hurstbridge 
following the arrival of the railway in 1912, when 
it was still a rural hamlet (Criterion A). It is 
socially and spiritually significant because it has 
served the community over a long period of time 
(Criterion G). 

 

 

 

The follow text is an abstract from the 
Statement of Significance for HO219: 

St Michaels Anglican Church is historically 
significant to Yarrambat as the only church 
building in Yarrambat and now the oldest public 
building on its original site and as the venue for 
a long period of worship (50 years) in the 
Yarrambat community (Criterion A) 
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Of the early churches, St Margaret’s Anglican Church, Eltham (HO154) is not directly comparable to 
the subject building due to it early build date, materiality (brick), scale, and more elaborate Gothic 
architectural styling. While built much earlier than the Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church, the St 
Andrew’s Anglican Church (HO21), the Kangaroo Ground Presbyterian Church, (HO46) and the 
Eltham Uniting Church (HO118) all have a similar built form and scale to the subject site and are also 
designed in the Carpenter Gothic style.  

The Carpenter Gothic style was used for churches of modest size, commonly in country areas when 
the economy and simplicity of construction was important. This style followed through from the 
Victorian to Federation eras and into the interwar years. The example most directly comparable to the 
subject site is St Andrew’s Anglican Church (HO28), built in 1868. It is of timber construction and has 
an almost identical form with simple pointed arch openings. 

Although larger in scale, the most comparable church on the Heritage Overlay to the subject building 
is the Hurstbridge Uniting Church (HO60). Built in the same year (1925) for the Methodist church, 
both buildings having a similar Carpenter Gothic form with pointed arch windows divided into panes 
that form a stylised Y-shaped tracery in the upper sashes. St Matthew’s Church, Panton Hill (HO96) is 
also of a similar scale, materiality and style to the subject church building although it was built earlier. 
It is interesting to note that St Michael’s Anglican Church, Yarrambat (HO219) still employed a 
Carpenter Gothic form in 1954.   

A common theme shared by these churches is their historical, social and spiritual importance to 
fledgling communities as they established themselves within the district. 

Community Halls 

The earliest halls in the Nillumbik area usually took the form of mechanics’ institutes and free libraries. 
The mechanics’ institute movement started in Scotland in 1800 with the intention of improving the 
education of working men (Mills & Westbrooke 2017).  

The Diamond Creek Public Hall and Literary Institute was possibly the earliest hall in the area, 
opening in 1868. The hall was used to house the infant grades of the state school when there was a 
rapid increase of pupils in the early 1870s (Mills & Westbrooke 2016:103). A new hall incorporating 
sections of the old was built in 1905, but this building was destroyed by fire in 1969 (Mills & 
Westbrooke 2017). 

At Kangaroo Ground a hall, which became known as Stevenson Hall after its builder, was built in 
1885. It did not have a library but did host the typical list of entertainments and meetings and was 
noted for its good dance floor. The Shire ordered the demolition of the dilapidated hall in 1969 (Mills & 
Westbrooke 2017).  
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Figure 26. Christmas Hills Mechanics’ 
Institute, 775–787 Ridge Road, Christmas 
Hills, rebuilt in 2013 (HO243 Shire of 
Nillumbik). (Source: 
https://christmashillshall.org.au/) 

The following text is an abstract taken 
from the Statement of Significance for 
HO243: 

The Christmas Hills Mechanics Institute 
is historically significant as a long-
standing public building in the Christmas 
Hills locality. It is part of a significant 
group of buildings, including the former 
post office (HO177), Lee House 
(HO201) and the Primary School 
(HO53), each of which played an 
important role in the local community 

 

 

Figure 27. St Andrews Hall, 1 Proctor Street, St Andrews 
1925 (Source: St Andrews Community Centre 
(https://www.standrewscommunitycentre.org/history-of-st-
andrews-hall.html) 

 

 

Figure 28. Arthurs Creek Mechanics Institute, 
906 Arthurs Creek Road, Arthurs Creek 
(Source: 
https://www.creativespaces.net.au/space/arth
urs-creek-mechanics-institute-inc)  

 

Figure 29. Gibson Hall, 575 Kangaroo Ground-St Andrews 
Road, Panton Hill c1924 (Source: 
https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:PantonHillGibsonHall.
JPG) 

https://christmashillshall.org.au/
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Figure 30. Yarrambat Memorial Hall, 450 
Ironbark Road, Yarrambat (Source: Google 
Maps) 

 

Figure 31. Hurstbridge Hall, 974 Heidelberg-Kinglake Road, 
Hurstbridge (Source: 
https://www.nillumbik.vic.gov.au/Facilities-for-hire/Hurstbridge-
Hall) 

 

The Christmas Hills Mechanics’ Institute and Free Library (HO243) opened in 1877. It was funded 
partly by public donations and partly by a government grant and was located on a temporary Crown 
land reserve (Mills & Westbrooke 2017). Destroyed by fire in 1894, the hall was rebuilt on its current 
site in 1895 and again in 2013. Other than the subject building this is the only hall on the Shire of 
Nillumbik’s Heritage Overlay. Although still in use as a hall this building is not directly comparable to 
the Plenty Hall as it was rebuilt in 2013. 

Fundraising for the Queenstown Mechanics’ Institute and Free Library started in 1882 with the 
building opening in 1883. In 1889 the building was moved to a more central position in the town, as it 
had been too inaccessible. The institute was reopened in 1899 and was an important part of the 
community until 1924 when it was destroyed by fire. It was rebuilt in 1925 at its current location and is 
now known as the St Andrews Hall (Mills & Westbrooke 2017). It is most comparable to the Plenty 
Hall for its interwar build date and for being of a similar materiality and form. 

Tenders for the erection of a mechanics’ institute and library at Arthurs Creek were let in 1887 by 
architect Edgar J Henderson. The Institute was opened in September of that year (Mills & Westbrooke 
2017). The hall is still in use. Although of a much earlier build date this hall is somewhat comparable 
to the subject building for its materiality and form and for being in continual use as a community hall.  

First newspaper mentions of a Hurstbridge Public Hall (or Hurstbridge Hall) appear in 1913. Additions 
were made in 1915. The hall was destroyed by fire and rebuilt in the mid-1950s (Mills &Westbrooke 
2017). Designed in the postwar modernist style this building is not directly comparable to the Plenty 
Hall. 

There is also a small timber hall building adjacent to the St Matthews Church at 575 Kangaroo 
Ground-St Andrews Road, Panton Hill. Known as Gibson Hall and built in c1924 the building is within 
the curtilage of HO96 and is comparable to the Plenty Hall having a similar materiality, form and 
interwar build date. Like the subject building it has also been in continual use as a hall since built. 

Following World War II small communities had few resources or materials for building a hall when 
they needed one. In 1948 the Yarrambat community moved a small redundant hall building from 
Langwarrin to create the Yarrambat Memorial Hall (Mills & Westbrooke 2017). This timber hall 
building remains although it has had an intrusive brick extension added across its façade. 
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Compared to the above examples The Plenty Hall is a rare surviving purpose-built community timber 
hall that has been in continual for 90 years without being destroyed by fire and re-built or significantly 
altered. 

CFA Fire Stations  

In the early twentieth century there was little organised firefighting in the Nillumbik area. Bush fire 
brigades were established throughout Victoria in the aftermath of the Black Sunday 1926 fires. The 
Panton Hill and Diamond Creek bush fire brigades were both formed in 1927 (Hurstbridge Advertiser, 
16 September 1927:33; 21 December 1928:2). The Eltham town brigade, formed in 1926, often 
helped in bush firefighting in surrounding areas beyond the town itself. Few buildings relating to 
firefighting survive from the pre-World War II period. Small towns and settlements have always made 
varied use of their few public buildings, and this extended to a range of activities concerning fire 
management. Public meetings to call for the formation of fire brigades were often held in halls after 
fires. These halls were also used for public meetings held to organise the raising of money for victims 
of the fires and fundraising concerts and balls were held in the same venues.  

In the aftermath of the Black Friday bushfires of 1939 additional fire brigades were established within 
Nillumbik. The Hurstbridge, Panton Hill and St Andrews bushfire brigades were all formed around 
1939 and the Diamond Creek bush fire brigade was formed in November 1940. When the Country 
Fire Authority (CFA) was established in 1945, volunteer bush fire brigades became the basis of 
bushfire fighting in Victoria. The CFA soon began to provide new equipment for brigades, including 
trucks, and corrugated iron sheds to house them.  

There are several CFA fire stations in the Shire of Nillumbik. The majority of these Fire Stations 
appear to have been built after the 1950s, with some more recent station buildings, such as that at 
Diamond Creek. Fire stations are a utilitarian typology, designed to respond to their function. They are 
often altered to meet changing demands faced by emergency services. 

To date, no fire station building has been included on the Shire of Nillumbik Heritage Overlay. The fire 
bell, located at the Eltham CFA Fire Station at 909 Main Road, Eltham, has been included as HO129.  

The following CFA Fire Stations are comparable to the subject site for their postwar build dates and 
their utilitarian single-storey, rectilinear built form where the function of the building as a fire station 
has dictated their design: 

 

Figure 32. Eltham CFA Fire Station, 909 Main Road, 
Eltham. (Source: Google maps) 

 

Figure 33. Kangaroo Ground CFA Fire Station, 50 
Kangaroo Ground- –St Andrews Road, Kangaroo 
Ground. (Source: Google Maps) 
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Figure 34. Research CFA Fire Station, 3 Research–
Warrandyte Road, Research. (Source: Google 
Maps) 

 

Figure 35. Diamond Creek CFA Fire Station, 83 Main 
Hurstbridge Road, Diamond Creek. (Source: Google 
Maps) 

 

 

Figure 36. Eltham CFA Fire Station (left) and bell (right). (Source: Hermes). 

Country Fire Authority fire stations have been included in Heritage Overlays outside the Shire of 
Nillumbik. However, these building tend to be of an earlier construction date, pre-World War II, and 
are not directly comparable.  

The Plenty Fire Station is distinguished from the Nillumbik example above by its inclusion within a 
civic precinct that forms the centre of the town of Plenty. The building’s location on a prominent corner 
within this precinct setting highlights the importance of fire service in towns in the Shire of Nillumbik.  

Catastrophic events like the 2009 Black Saturday bushfires form the basis of a strong and enduring 
collective memory for those in the area. The Plenty Fire Station would have played a pivotal role in 
protecting the township during that time. Further, the nearby proximity of the Plenty Hall is important 
due to the known community connections between public halls and fire stations in times of crisis in the 
shire. The volunteer nature of the organisation also provides a close tie to the local community. 

Conclusion 

As a collection of buildings on a site that has been in Council ownership since 1929, the Plenty Hall, 
Plenty CFA Fire Station and relocated former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church are significant 
for the tangible evidence they provide of the early settlement and growth of the township of Plenty. 
This is reinforced by the site’s proximity to the Plenty High School site (HO213) at 17 Howell Road 
and the Plenty War Memorial Gates (HO249) at 109–115B Yan Yean Road. In this way the group of 
buildings is comparable to several other early groups of buildings in the shire that form civic precincts. 
These include those at Kangaroo Ground, which includes the Presbyterian Church (HO46), State 
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School (HO47) and General Store and Post Office (HO48); those at Panton Hill, which include the St 
Matthews Church and Memorial Cross (HO96), Panton Hill Primary School and Maud Rattray 
Memorial Bell (HO97) and the Panton Hill Primary School residence (HO98); and those at St 
Andrews, which include a shop and residence (HO18), St Andrews Hotel (HO19), St Andrews State 
School (HO20) and St Andrew’s Anglican Church (HO21). 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

WHAT IS SIGNIFICANT? 

The Plenty Heritage Park at 2–6 Memorial Drive, Plenty, comprising the Plenty Hall (1930–31) and 
former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church (1924, relocated to this site 2018) and its natural bush 
setting, is significant. 

Elements that contribute to the significance of the place include: 

• the Plenty Hall building (1930-31) 

• the former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church (1924) 

• the cast iron fire bell; 

• the informal natural bush landscape of the site, which includes its natural topography, indigenous 
trees and plantings, and gravelled surfaces with no hard paving or kerbing 

• the ongoing social use of the site for local community activities. 

The Plenty CFA Fire Station building, and the additions made to the Plenty Hall in 2010 and to the 
former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church in 2020 are not significant. The ongoing presence of 
the CFA organisation within the civic precinct is of local historic interest as is the time capsule which is 
due to be opened in 2034-35. 

HOW IS IT SIGNIFICANT? 

The Plenty Heritage Park at 2-6 Memorial Drive, Plenty, is of local historical, representative and social 
significance to the Shire of Nillumbik. 

WHY IS IT SIGNIFICANT? 

The Plenty Heritage Park is historically significant as a parcel of land purchased by the Council in 
1929 for the purpose of being reserved for public use by the local community. This resulted in the 
construction of community facilities on the site that forms the centre of the town of Plenty. The 
relocation of the former Methodist (later Uniting) Church in 2018 reinforces this historical significance 
of the site, continuing and expanding its use for community purposes. The Plenty Heritage Park is 
also significant for its informal bush character that is distinguished by its natural topography, 
unstructured plantings of indigenous trees and unpaved, gravelled surfaces with no kerbing.  

The Plenty CFA initially built a tin shed on the site in the 1960s, replacing it with the current building in 
1970 (additions 1979 & 1994). The long-time association of the fire service with the civic precinct 
setting highlights the importance of fire services to towns in the Shire of Nillumbik. While the CFA 
building itself is not significant, it has been used for various other civic and community functions in 
accordance with the intended use for community facilities. These include functions connected to local 
sporting clubs, serving as a polling booth, and providing a meeting place for the Plenty Historical 
Society. As a marker of the site’s significance to the local community a cast iron fire bell was 
relocated to the site in 1984–85 and a time capsule was placed under it to commemorate Victoria’s 
150th anniversary. (Criterion A)  
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The Plenty Heritage Park is of local social significance for its long and continuing associations with 
the local Plenty community, and specific local groups within the broader community, including the 
CFA, Plenty Cricket Club, Plenty Girl Guides and Plenty Historical Society. The site as a whole has 
played an ongoing role in the social life of the local Plenty community since 1931, when the hall 
opened. The hall has served the community for 90 years for various functions and activities, including 
dances, concerts and meeting for local groups.  Local CFA volunteers have used the site as their 
home base since the 1960s. The site continues to be used exclusively for civic purposes, including as 
a polling both for local, state and federal elections. (Criterion G)  

The Plenty Hall is of local historical significance. The Plenty Progress Association held a series of 
fundraisers during the 1920s to build a hall on the site, which culminated in the Association asking 
Council that the building inspector prepare plans for the hall in November 1930. Within a few years 
the hall was already proving too small, and extensions have been undertaken intermittently. This 
reflects its integral role in providing a central hub for local community activities. It continues to be used 
for its original purpose. (Criterion A) 

The Plenty Hall is of representative (architectural) significance. It is a largely intact, highly 
representative example of a utilitarian timber community hall built in the interwar period. It is 
characterised by its simple rectangular plan with corrugated iron gable roof and double hung timber 
sash windows and double door openings. Of note are the unusually detailed chamfered timber slatted 
eaves. (Criterion D)  

The former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church is historically significant for its long association 
with religious gatherings and activities in the Plenty farming area since its construction in 1924. It is 
one of a group of much-valued civic structures in the immediate area. Although no longer used as a 
church, the building continues to be used for community purposes. (Criterion A) 

The former Plenty Methodist (later Uniting) Church building is of representative (architectural) 
significance. It is a largely intact, highly representative example of a country interwar timber church. It 
is characterised by its simple rectangular plan with a steeply pitched gable roof clad in galvanised 
corrugated iron, with exposed rafter ends and four cylindrical roof vents, pointed window openings 
and projecting front vestibule. These features are characteristic of the interwar Carpenter Gothic style. 
(Criterion D) 

The fire bell is historically significant as a relatively rare surviving example of a cast iron fire bell, and 
because it has played an important part in the community life of Plenty, warning of local fires since the 
1940s. (Criterion A) 
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RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommended for inclusion in the Schedule to the Heritage Overlay of the Nillumbik Planning 
Scheme as an individually significant place. 

Extent of overlay: To title boundaries (Lot 2 PS817427) 

Recommendations for the Schedule to the Heritage Overlay (Clause 43.01) in the Nillumbik Planning 
Scheme: 

Nillumbik Planning Scheme 

External paint controls No 

Internal alteration controls  No 

Tree controls  

Yes — 
informal 
natural 
bush 
landscape 
including its 
natural 
topography, 
indigenous 
trees and 
plantings  

Outbuildings or fences No 

To be included on the Victorian Heritage Register No 

Prohibited uses may be permitted No 

Aboriginal heritage place No 

Other 

 N/A 
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